
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

      Phone: 907- 543-2047 

         Fax: 907-543-3781 

Regular City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, July 24, 2018 

    6:30 P.M. 

Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



Agenda posted on July 17, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing August 14, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
July 24, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net  

Mark Springer 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
msprigner@cityofbethel.net  

Thor Williams 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
twilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Mitchell Forbes  
Council Member  
Term Expires 2019 
mforbes@cityofbethel.net 

Brian Henry 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
bhenry@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 
City Manager 
543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 
543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net  

Patty Burley 
City Attorney 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *6-28-2018 Nuisance Abatement Hearing Osage 

b) *7-10-2018 Regular City Council Meeting 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

a) Healthfitness Monthly Report (Mayor Robb)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-16: Amending The Bethel Municipal Code, Chapters
2.05.190 And 2.05.200, City Officers Generally, Employment Prohibited And Political
Activity (Mayor Robb)

b) Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-17: Amending Section 9.01 Of The Bethel Municipal Code,
Minor Offenses Adopted (City Manager Williams)

c) Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 18-12(b): Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2019
Budget- Public Works Dept.-Leased Property Court Complex- Finance Dept.-
Administration Dept. (City Manager Williams)

X. NEW BUSINESS

a) *Introduction Of Ordinance 18-18: Adopting Fees And Charges Related To Admission At 
The Yukon Kuskokwim Fitness Center (City Manager Williams) 

b) AM 18-55: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A Contract With The
Top Scoring Proposer For Water Tank Inspection And Cleaning Services (City Manager
Williams)

c) AM 18-56: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A Contract With The
Top Scoring Proposer For Bulk Fuel Services (City Manager Williams)

d) *IM 18-12: Presentation Of The City’s Financial Report Through June 30, 2018 Containing 
Year-To-Date Expenditures Compared To The Budget And Presentation Of The Utility 
Operator’s Report For June 2018 (City Manager’s Report) 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT
XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XV. ADJOURNMENT

P2
P5

P16

P19

P21

P31

P34

P45

P65

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:twilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:mforbes@cityofbethel.net
mailto:bhenry@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

1



 
  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 28, 2018 
 

1 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Council met on June 28, at 6:36p.m., at 300 State Highway, in Bethel, Alaska to 
consider a nuisance abatement report submitted by the City Administration.

 
II. Roll Call 

 
Members present: 
Mayor Richard Robb 
Vice Mayor Fred Watson 
Council Member Leif Albertson 
Council Member Mitchell Forbes 
Council Member Thor Williams  
 
 
 

 
 
Members absent:  
Council Member Mark Springer 
Council Member Brian Henry 
 
Others City Representatives Present:  
City Manager Pete Williams 
City Attorney Patty Burley 
City Clerk Lori Strickler 
City Planning Director Betsy Jumper

III. Hearing Summary 
 

Nuisance abatement hearing regarding 220 Osage.  This hearing is being conducted on 
June 28, 2018 at 6:30p.m., in Bethel, Alaska, at the City Council Chambers.  
 
The legal description of the property being reviewed is: 
Lot Two “B”, Block Six (6), Resub of U.S.  Survey 3770, NORTHWEST ADDITION TO THE 
TOWNSITE OF BETHEL, according to the official plat thereof, filed under Plat 82-7, recorded in 
the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska. 
 

Summary provided by the Mayor:  

The hearing is a nuisance abatement hearing pursuant to BMC 15.04.010D.  The hearing 

is initiated by a report filed with the City Council on June 12, 2018, pursuant to BMC 

15.04.010(A).  The report filed by the City Administration alleged that the property 

located at 220 Osage, is a nuisance property and a health hazard.  

The Council is acting as a neutral adjudicatory body.  The Council will listen to the 
evidence presented by City Administration and any evidence presented by the property 
owner and/or their designee.  After listening to testimony and reviewing any evidence 
presented, the Council will render a decision.  The burden of proof is on the City 
Administration to prove the property as a public nuisance, fire hazard and/or a health 
hazard by a preponderance of the evidence.  A preponderance of the evidence standard 
means that it is more likely true than not or more than 50%.   
 
If, after reviewing all of the evidence presented, the Council declares a parcel, property 
or structure to be a fire hazard, health hazard or public nuisance, it may order correction 

2



 
  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 28, 2018 
 

2 

of the defects or removal or demolition thereof by the owner or his agent not sooner 
than 14 days from the date of the Council’s declaration.  
 
IV. Oath Administration 

 
Betsy Jumper, City Planner 

 
V. Proceedings:  

 
City: 15 minutes 
Questions for the City by the Property Owner 
Property Owner: 15 minutes 
City’s Rebuttal 
Closing Arguments 

 
VI. Hearing and Determination of Findings  

 
The City Planner presented an explanation of the report on the property and described 
the items found in the photos provided in the report.  
There were no supplements to the record presented at the hearing.  
 
The Council finds the property is a fire hazard and a public nuisance due to the piles of 
fragmented wood, collection of fuel tanks, sewer tank, appliances, wood, broken glass, 
metal, and other common household objects scattered across the property.  
 
With the property backing up to Brown’s Slough and having a downward grade to the 
Slough, there is concern of contamination from the chemicals utilized during the fire.  
 
The mass of debris is also considered an attractive nuisance and is situated across the 
street from the 4-H Youth Facility which is frequented by children.  
 
The property appears to be abandoned as there appears to have not been any attempt 
to clean up the site since the fire.   
 
Having declared the property a fire hazard and a public nuisance, the Council demands 
cleanup of the site to include but not be limited to:  

 Removal of the debris/trash/scrap wood, metal/appliances/broken glass etc.  

 Removal of the remains of the residential building by the imposed deadline unless 
before that date, it is determined by a licensed contractor that the building is 
structurally secure or has been made structurally secure.  

The remediation must be completed not later than 15 days after final written notice is 
mailed to the owner. The findings of fact and order will be considered at the Council’s 
Regular Meeting scheduled for July 10, 2018.   

3



 
  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 28, 2018 
 

3 

 
The City Clerk is directed to send notice of the known owners of the Council’s intent to 
consider an abatement order. The City Clerk and City Attorney are directed to draft the 
resolution outlining the findings of fact and order to abate for consideration at the July 
10, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting.  
 
Council unanimously adopted the findings and directions.   
 
VII. Adjournment  

 
The Council adjourned the hearing at 7:28 p.m. 
 
 

4



1 

City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

July 10, 2018 

Regular Meeting 
July 10, 2018 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on July 10, 2018 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD

Mary Nanuwak- Asked the Council why they are spending so much money on 
gravel for the roads when the gravel is just pushed off the road. Stated concerns 
related to the resignation of the Finance Director and suggested the public be 
provided an explanation as to why.  

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Williams 

  City Council Meeting 
 City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer (arrived at 6:36 p.m.) 

Council Member Leif Albertson Council Member Mitchell Forbes  

Council Member Thor Williams Council Member Brian Henry 

Members Absent: 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

City Attorney Patty Burley 

5



2 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 10, 2018 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
Removal from 

Consent: Items A,B,C, and I under New business from the Consent Agenda.  

Moved by: Williams 

 
Removal from 

Consent: Remove the meeting minutes from June 26, 2018 

Moved by: Robb 

 
Council Member Springer arrived at 6:36 p.m. 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 
 
Item A – 6-26-2018 Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
 

Main Motion: Approve the 6-26-2018 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes.  

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Williams  
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 

Amend the Primary Amendment on page 4 of the meeting minutes which reads 
“Amend 5.08.110 D 2. to strike “two (2)” and insert “one (1)” security guard in the 

first and the last sentence.“ to strike Robb as listed as opposition and list him as in 
favor.   

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Public Safety and Transportation Commission  
No one available to provide a report.  
 
Port Commission   
A meeting has not been held since the last city council meeting.  
 

6



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 10, 2018 

Planning Commission   
The Commission held a meeting on June 14. The Commission discussed home signage 
and a variance was also passed by the Commission.  
 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee   
Meeting was rescheduled to later in the month due to a lack of a quorum.  
 
Finance Committee   
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council Meeting.  
 
Public Works Committee   
No one available to provide a report.  
 

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Item A – Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-14: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 
4.16.160, Sales Tax, Tax Exemptions, Making All Real Estate Sales Tax Exempt. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-14. 

Moved by: Williams 

Seconded by: Springer  
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item B – Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-15: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 4.16, 
Sales Taxes To Add A Provision For A Use Tax On Alcoholic Beverages. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-15. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

7



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 10, 2018 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Item A – Introduction of Ordinance 18-16: Amending The Bethel Municipal Code, 
Chapters 2.05.190 And 2.05.200, City Officers Generally, Employment Prohibited And 
Political Activity. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 18-16. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   

Opposed:  Henry   Williams   

 

Item B – Introduction of Ordinance 18-17: Amending Section 9.01 Of The Bethel 
Municipal Code, Minor Offenses Adopted. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 18-17. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item C – Introduction of Budget Ordinance 18-12(b): Amending the Adopted Annual 
FY 2019 Budget- Public Works Dept.-Leased Property Court Complex- Finance Dept.-
Administration Dept. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Budget Ordinance 18-12(b). 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

Item D – Resolution 18-12: Declaring The Property On Osage, Generally Described 
As Lot 2B, Block 6, Plat #82-15, Bethel Alaska, A Public Nuisance And Fire Hazard And 
Ordering The Abatement Thereof. 

Passed on Consent Agenda 
 

Item E – AM 18-52: Direct City Administration To Prepare And Submit An Application 
To The USDA-RD To Pursue $13,461,920 In Grant/Loan Funding For The Construction 
Of Alternative 3: Single Phase Piped Water And Sewer For The Avenues 

8



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 10, 2018 

Neighborhood, Plus Six Water Trucks, As Defined In The Preliminary Engineering 
Report-June 2018. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-52. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

Item F – AM 18-53: Appointment Of Lucinda Alexie The Community Action Grant 
Technical Review Board For A Term Of Three Years. 

Passed on Consent Agenda. 
 

Item G – AM 18-54: Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract 
with Espelin & Associates, LLC., for interim coverage of the Finance Director position-
Corresponds to IM 18-11. 

 

Main Motion: Approve AM 18-54. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item H – Clarification On The Funds Associated With The Community Action Grant 
Program And How Those Funds Are Appropriated In The Budget. 

 

Item I – IM 18-11: Report To City Council, Pursuant To BMC 4.20.150 That The City 
Manager Hired An Independent Contractor Without Going To A Request For 
Proposals-Corresponds To AM 18-54. 

 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XII. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XIII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Richard Robb –  
Be safe during the boating and fishing season.  
There will be Seattle Seahawks at the Teen Center tomorrow.  
 

9



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 10, 2018 

Council Member Leif Albertson – 
Enjoyed the 4th of July celebration and thanked the Police Department Staff that made 
it to the event.  
 
Council Member Mark Springer –  
Appreciated the fact that it didn’t rain the entire 4th of July parade. Thanked everyone 
who volunteered and put the celebration together.  
Congratulated Gene Peltola Jr. on his appointment as the area director for B.I.A. 
 
Council Member Thor Williams–  
Apologized ahead of time for missing the next meeting due to personal travel.  
Has a concern with the water, sewer, and refuse billing. This is the highest bill his 
household pays each month. Fears the members of the community will not be able to 
afford the increases to their bills if these increases continue.  
 
Council Member Mitchell Forbes– 
Fire Department did beat the Police Department at the tug a war at the fair. Thanked 
everyone who helped make the 4th of July Celebration a great event.  
 
Council Member Brian Henry– 
Pointed out this year, the king salmon numbers weren’t as high was projected. Hopes 
that the families got what they need for the winter.  
Enjoys participating in the Council Meetings, and loves community relations.  
 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item A – In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge 
Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public 
Entity- Court House Leased Property Contract. 
 
 

Main Motion: 

Move into Executive Session- 

In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which 

Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- Court 
House Leased Property Contract. Those attending Item A were City Attorney, City 

Manager and City Clerk. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

10



7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 10, 2018 

Main Motion: Adjournment. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

 
 
Council adjourned at 9:24 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

11



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 1 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 5, 2018 

City of Bethel, Alaska  

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 
July 5, 2018 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A regular meeting of the Public Safety and Transportation Commission was held on July 5th, 

2018 in the Bethel City Hall Council Chambers. 

  

This meeting was called to order at 6:42pm. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:  Jared Karr Vice Chair 

   Joan Dewey 

   Monroe Tyler 

    

Absent:  Eileen Henrikson Chair 

   Brian Henry Council Representative 

   Mary Weiss 

   Julene Webber  

   Mary Nanuwak Alternate 

   William Howell III Fire Chief 

 

Ex-Officio Present: Burke Waldron Police Chief 

   Jesslyn McGowan Recorder 

 

 

A quorum was not established of the Commission. 

 

III. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Meeting adjourned at 6:43 pm. 

 

 

APPROVED THIS _______  DAY OF_______________________, 2018.    

    

 

    

_________________________    ________________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder     Eileen Henrikson, Chair 

13



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date July 10, 2018 

Public Hearing: July 24, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-16 

  Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance # 18-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BETHEL MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTERS 
2.05.190 AND 2.05.200, CITY OFFICERS GENERALLY, EMPLOYMENT 

PROHIBITED AND POLITICAL ACTIVITY 
 

WHEREAS,  Chapter 2.05.190 prohibits anyone having been employed by the City to sit 
on council within a 12-month period of their employment unless that 
member is hired as a consultant or contractor and a waiver has been 
provided by the City Council;  

 
WHEREAS,  Chapter 2.05.200 D states:  A municipal employee shall not serve as a 

member of the Bethel city council or school board or in elective office of the 
state, federal, or another local government. A municipal employee who is 
elected to one (1) of these offices shall resign immediately from municipal 
employment;  

 
WHEREAS,  the legal concerns of dual offices is covered under 2.05.200, there are no 

legal concerns to warrant the prohibition of the election or appointment of a 
qualified (as per BMC Title7) individual to city council as long as they are not 
a city employee and serving on city council at the same time;  

 
NOW, BE IT ORDAINED, the City Council amends the Bethel Municipal Code, Chapter 
2.05.190 and 2.05.200, City Officers Generally, Employment Prohibited and Political 
Activity. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified Ordinance and shall become part of the 
Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Amendments.  Bethel Municipal Code Chapters 2.05.190 and 2.05.200 are 
amended as follows: (new language is underlined and old language is stricken): 
 
2.05.190  Employment prohibited. 
 
No member of the council may be employed by the city in any capacity within a twelve- 
(12-) month period immediately preceding or following the term of that individual unless 
the member is employed as a hired consultant or contractor and a waiver has been 
provided by the city council as described in BMC 4.20.240. 
 

16



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date July 10, 2018 

Public Hearing: July 24, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-16 

  Page 2 of 3 

2.05.200  Political activity. 
 
The following limitations shall apply to political activity:  

A. Departments, boards, and commissions of municipal government shall not:  

1. Expend municipal funds for the support, opposition or endorsement of candidates 
for any elected government office. 

2. Expend municipal funds for paid advertisement which advocates or promotes a 
particular position, or solicits members of the public to advocate or promote a 
particular position, on legislation or other action pending before the council.  

3. Permit an administrative division of municipal government to endorse or oppose 
candidates for elected federal, state, municipal or other local office even if such 
endorsement does not include expenditure of funds. This prohibition applies to 
municipal employees while on duty and to the use of municipal property or facilities 
in a manner not made available to members of the public.  

4. Authorize that money held by the municipality be used to influence the outcome 
of an election, except as permitted by state law under AS 15.13.145.  

5. Actively campaign or prepare, publish, broadcast, or distribute by any means 
material of a partisan nature on any ballot measure, this including referendums, 
initiatives, bond issues or other special elections.  

B. Subject to restrictions in AS 15.13.145 on the use and expenditure of municipal funds 
to influence the outcome of a ballot proposition or question, the city manager may 
designate in advance, in writing, one (1) or more executive employees to appear before 
the council, appointed public bodies of the municipality, community councils, civic 
organizations, and media representatives in support of or in opposition to any ballot 
measure coming before the voters in a municipal election. The designated executive 
employees shall be selected from among the employees with principal responsibility for 
carrying out policies and programs relevant to the ballot measure.  

C. The limitation against dissemination of partisan materials on bond measures does not 
apply to municipal employees asked to assist an elected official in the preparation of 
ballot measures or to respond to inquiries from an elected official concerning any ballot 
measure.  

D. A municipal employee shall not serve as a member of the Bethel city council or 
school board or in elective office of the state, federal, or another local government. A 
municipal employee who is elected to one (1) of these offices shall resign immediately 
from municipal employment.  

E. For purposes of this section, public safety volunteers, hired consultants or contractors 
are not considered municipal employees (BMC 3.64.060). 

17



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date July 10, 2018 

Public Hearing: July 24, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-16 

  Page 3 of 3 

 
SECTION 3.  Effective date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage by the 
Bethel City Council.  
 
ENACTED THIS 24th DAY OF JULY 2018, BY A VOTE OF 0 IN FAVOR AND 0 
OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

18



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date July 10, 2018 

Public Hearing: July 24, 2018 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-17 

  Page 1 of 2 

Ordinance #18-17 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9.01 OF THE BETHEL MUNICIPAL 
CODE, MINOR OFFENSES ADOPTED 

 
WHEREAS  in 2014, the City of Bethel adopted all minor offenses in the State of Alaska as 

they currently existed, may be revised in the future or may later be adopted;  
 
WHEREAS the ordinance exempted one specific minor offense – Minor Consuming Alcohol 

(MCA); 
 
WHEREAS the rationale for exempting MCA’s was that while a minor offense, the Alaska 

Supreme Court had ruled the minors were entitled to a public defender in 
those cases due to the potential for jail time and the loss of their drivers 
licenses; 

 
WHEREAS while the City found the protection of minor’s to be extremely important, the 

City lacked the resources to pay the high cost associated with paying for a 
public defender and all the associated costs that come with that 
representation;  

 
WHEREAS the offense of Minor Consuming Alcohol was recently amended by the 

legislature to return it to a regular minor offense with no possibility of jail 
time or the loss of a driver’s license;  

 
WHEREAS as a result of the recent amendment to the law, minors are no longer entitled 

to representation by a public defender and by extension the City would no 
longer be subject to the high costs associated with prosecuting these types of 
cases;  

 
WHEREAS without the cost deterrent the City is free to treat this type of Minor Offense 

as it does all others;  
 
WHEREAS the result being that the City would be the ones prosecuting the Minor 

Offenses and providing representation instead of the District Attorney’s 
Office; 

 
WHEREAS now that these offenses have the criminal aspect removed, the City can focus 

on getting help and assistance to youth at an early stage in the hopes of 
preventing issues with alcohol as they reach adulthood; 

 
NOW, BE IT ORDAINED, the City Council amends the Bethel Municipal Code, Section 
9.01, Minor Offenses Adopted. 

19



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date July 10, 2018 

Public Hearing: July 24, 2018 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-17 

  Page 2 of 2 

 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified Ordinance and shall become part of the 
Bethel Municipal Code.   
 
SECTION 2. Amendments. Bethel Municipal Code Chapter 9.01 Minor Offenses 
Adopted, is  amended as follows (old language is stricken, new language is underlined):  
 
9.01.010 Minor offenses adopted 
 
A. The City adopts statutes and regulations of the State of Alaska relating to minor 

offenses, except for minor consuming alcohol offenses, as they presently exist and 
as they may be revised in the future along with the fine schedule existing at the 
time and as it may be revised in the future. 
 

B. The City adopts the enforcement and processing mechanisms set out in Bethel 
Municipal Code Chapter 10. 

 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage by 
the Bethel City Council. 
 
ENACTED THIS 24th  DAY OF JULY 2018, BY A VOTE OF  _ IN FAVOR AND _  
OPPOSED.  
 
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 
 

20



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing:

Action:

Vote:

ORDINANCE # 18-12(b) 

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2019 Budget

WHEREAS, City Administration reviewed the FY 2019 Budget and discovered several inaccuracies, missing

entries, and account funds that must be moved;

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director reviewed budgets under his perview and recommnded that changes

be made.

Section 1.  The following sums of money may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and

objects of the City hereinafter specified for Fiscal Year 2019 (July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019).

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

WHEREAS, the purchase of the Belly Dump Truck was $44,675 less than expected ($65,325 vs. $110,000);

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director chose to use $4,675 in bid savings for the Belly Dump Trick purchase in

case freight cost increases or other contingency;

WHEREAS, the City needs $40,000 in gravel to construct the landfill road, a key component to meeting

the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, Compliance Division's, landfill operation

requirements.

WHEREAS, object code 561 (supplies) was used to code gravel purchase rather than 771 because expenditures

for 561 are already in department budget;

LANDFILL OPERATIONS

Budget modification (a)

Account # Increases Amount

50-71-561 GRAVEL (LANDFILL) 40,000

Total Increases 40,000 

Decreases

50-71-699 BELLY DUMP TRUCK (40,000)

Total Decreases (40,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Lanfill Operations Appropriations 0 

WHEREAS, the purchase of an engine for a water and sewer truck is no longer needed because the  

City repurposed USDA-RD grant/loan funds for the purchase of five new sewer trucks and

the City has an opportunity to purchase new water haul trucks under the proposed new

USDA-RD grant/loan for water and sewer improvements to the Avenues Neighborhood;

WHEREAS, all City water and sewer trucks need new studded tires because the City is not allowed 

to use chains on the highway, per DOT&PF.

HAULED WATER

Budget modification (b)

Account # Increases Amount

51-81-600 TIRES/WHEELS/CHAINS 35,000 

Total Increases 35,000 

Decreases

51-81-690 ENGINE (35,000)

City Manager Williams

July 10, 2018

July 24, 2018

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY2019 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

                    City of Bethel
Ordinance #18-12(b)

1 of 3
21



Total Decreases (35,000)
TOTAL Net Change to Hauled Water Appropriations 0

WHEREAS, the FY 2019 Budget contains no money for Heating Fuel in Piped Sewer Enterprise Fund;

WHEREAS, the FY 2018 Budget contained $35,000 for Heating Fuel in Piped Sewer Enterprise Fund.

PIPED SEWER

Budget modification (c)

Account # Increases Amount

51-86-623 HEATING FUEL 30,000 

Total Increases 30,000 

Decreases

51-10100 WATER AND SEWER FUND BALANCE (30,000)

Total Decreases (30,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Piped Sewer Appropriations 0

WHEREAS, the FY 2019 Budget contains no money for Water, Sewer, Garbage in Leased Property

Court Complex;

WHEREAS, the Generator Repairs line item amount of $10,000 is no longer needed because the repairs

were made with funds from a previous fiscal year.

LEASED PROPERTY - COURT COMPLEX

Budget modification (d)

Account # Increases Amount

53-55-626 WATER, SEWER, GARBAGE 12,000 

Total Increases 12,000 

Decreases

53-55-694 GENERATOR REPAIR (10,000)

53-55-642 LEGAL FEES (2,000)

Total Decreases (12,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Leased Property - Court Complex Appropriations 0

WHEREAS, the amount of money in the FY 2019 Budget for electricity is inadequate and $46,599 more

must be added;

WHEREAS, the annual cost of electricity is estimated to be $129,500, the average of the last three years;

LEASED PROPERTY - COURT COMPLEX

Budget modification (e)

Account # Increases Amount

53-55-621 ELECTRICITY 49,188 

Total Increases 49,188 

Decreases

53-10100 COURTHOUSE ENTERPRISE FUND (41,188)

53-55-663 JANITORIAL SERVICES - CONTRACT (8,000)

Total Decreases (49,188)
TOTAL Net Change to Leased Property - Court Complex Appropriations 0

WHEREAS, additional funds are needed to cover the cost of elevator maintenance and inspection, which

will come from the Insurance line item;

LEASED PROPERTY - COURT COMPLEX

Budget modification (f)

Account # Increases Amount

53-55-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 4,000 

Total Increases 4,000 

Decreases

53-55-721 INSURANCE (4,000)

                    City of Bethel
Ordinance #18-12(b)

2 of 3
22



Total Decreases (4,000)
TOTAL Net Change to Leased Property - Court Complex Appropriations 0

WHEREAS, the position of Finance Director is vacant in the Finance Department;

WHEREAS, historically, the position has taken between six months to one year to fill;

WHEREAS, the Assistant Finance Director/Comptroller position has been vacant for almost one year;

WHEREAS, in order to maintain continuity of services, the City needs to utilize the services of outside

contractors;

WHEREAS, the salary and benefits assigned to the Finance Director position can be reallocated to the 

contractors;

WHEREAS, the reallocation avoids excessive spending to accomplish the tasks provided by the position;

WHEREAS, the reallocation avoids excessive spending to accomplish the tasks provided by the position;

WHEREAS, the reallocation amount sets a quantifiable limit for Administration;

WHEREAS, because the ultimate goal is to fill the position, only half of the salary and benefits will be 

reallocated.

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Budget modification (g)

Account # Increases Amount

10-53-642 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 83,431 

Total Increases 83,431 

Decreases

10-53-501 SALARIES (ONE-HALF FINANCE DIRECTOR) (64,375)

10-53-502 BENEFITS (ONE-HALF FINANCE DIRECTOR) (19,056)

Total Decreases (83,431)
TOTAL Net Change to Finance Department 0

WHEREAS, the City extended an offer to a highly qualified candidate to serve as Human Resources Manager;

WHEREAS, after negotiation, the City agreed to pay the candidate $82,400 during the probation period, and 

$92,000 a year upon completion of the six-month probation period;

WHEREAS, the City is in the process of hiring an Assistant Finance Director at a salary of $84,085, an amount

less than the $112,000 budgeted;

ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS

Budget modification (h)

Account # Increases - ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT Amount

10-51-R8 SALARIES (HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER) 9,600 

Oct-51 BENEFITS (HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER) 2,466 

Total Increases 12,066 

Decreases - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

10-53-MII SALARIES (ASSISTANT FINANCE DIRECTOR) (9,600)

BENEFITS (ASSISTANT FINANCE DIRECTOR) (2,466)

Total Decreases (12,066)
TOTAL Net Change to City Budget 0

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 24TH DAY OF JULY 2018 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_______________________ ______________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk Richard Robb, Mayor

                    City of Bethel
Ordinance #18-12(b)

3 of 3
23



24



25



26



27



28



29



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

30



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Introduction Date: July 24, 2018 

 Public Hearing:  August 14 , 2018 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance 18-18 
Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Ordinance #18-18 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING 
FEES AND CHARGES RELATED TO ADMISSION  
AT THE YUKON KUSKOKWIM FITNESS CENTER 

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel has previously approved the Fees and Rates stated 
below via the annual Operations Plan with Health Fitness; 

WHEREAS, these fees and rates, while approved, are in a separate document and not 
reflected in the City’s Fee & Rate Schedule as are nearly all of the fees 
which the City sets;  

WHEREAS, having the fees and rates in the Fee & Rate schedule not only provides 
more transparency, it also provides a stronger mechanism for an annual 
review;  

WHEREAS, all of the fees identified in this Ordinance are the same as those from the 
most recent Operations Plan except for the Family Rates; 

WHEREAS, the Family Rates has proven difficult not only to sell, but also to manage as 
it is a bargain for extremely large families yet more costly than individual 
passes for the average sized family;  

WHEREAS, after careful review of the Family Rates, a fee structure that better reflects 
a true volume discount has been devised; 

WHEREAS, this fee rate is easier to calculate, provides a more equitable discount for 
every family, regardless of size, and is easier to program into the Point of 
Sale Software;  

BE IT ORDAINED that the City Council of Bethel Alaska, 

Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is not permanent in nature and shall be 
not be placed within the Bethel Municipal Code. 

Section 2.  Amendment: The Fees and Charges schedule is hereby amended, new 
language is underlined and old language is stricken. 

31



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Introduction Date: July 24, 2018 

      Public Hearing:  August 14 , 2018 
Action:   

Vote:  
 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-18 
  Page 2 of 3 

YK FITNESS CENTER 
ADMISSION RATES 

Individual 
FEES/CHARGES 

Family 
Fees/Charges 

Daily Rate   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $8 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $5 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Seniors 60+) $3 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $6 N/A 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $11 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $8 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $6 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $9 N/A 
   
Monthly Rate   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $66 $59 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $33 $30 
Pool or Fitness (Senior 60+) $28 $25 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $44 $40 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $90 $81 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $55 $50 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $50 $45 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $55 $50 
   
Annual Rate   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $660 $594 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $330 $297 
Pool or Fitness (Senior 60+) $275 $248 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $440 $396 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $905 $815 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $530 $477 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $480 $432 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $640 $576 
   
 
Family Rates  

  

Available for families registering 
three (3) or more individuals (up to a 
maximum of 8).   

Monthly rates for 
families are calculated 
at 10% off the regular 
monthly rates. 

Annual membership 
rates for families 
are calculated at 
20% off the regular 
annual rates. 

32



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Introduction Date: July 24, 2018 

      Public Hearing:  August 14 , 2018 
Action:   

Vote:  
 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-18 
  Page 3 of 3 

YK FITNESS CENTER 
ADMISSION RATES 

Individual 
FEES/CHARGES 

Family 
Fees/Charges 

   
Bundle Pass: 10 pass package   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $72 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $55 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Senior 60+) $27 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $54 N/A 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $99 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $72 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $54 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $81 N/A 

 
 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become upon passage. 
 
ENACTED THIS   DAY OF AUGUST 2018, BY A VOTE OF    IN FAVOR 
AND    OPPOSED.  
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Richard Robb, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

33



18-55

34



1 | P a g e  
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR 

WATER TANK CLEANING AND INSPECTION SERVICES 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _______day of July 2018, by and between the 

CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as CITY),  and BETHEL 

BUILDERS. [hereinafter “Contractor”]. 

Section 01 Scope of Services 

Contractor hereby agrees to provide the services and materials under this Agreement pursuant 

to the provisions and specifications identified within the Best and Final Offer Notice following 

the Request for Bids dated December of 2017 and the corresponding Bid and Best and Final 

Offer from Bethel Services, Inc., both of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference as Attachments “A” (Request for Bids) and Attachment “B” (Response to RFB).   

A. Inspection 

Contractor shall inspect two (2) City of Bethel potable water tanks.  The first being located at 

235 Akiak Street and the 2nd being located at 900 Ridgecrest Drive.  Contractor will inspect the 

interior and exterior of both tanks, reviewing the structural, sanitary, safety, security and any 

installed coating conditions.  A DVD video, as well as a comprehensive report, will be provided 

following inspection which will detail findings based on OSHA, EPA, AWWA, TECEQ and NFPA 

requirements.  Minimum items to be examined will include ladders, shell, roof, vent, manways, 

welds, seams, foundation, anchors, safety systems, hatches, external overflow and plumbing.   

Contractor will utilize methodology to ensure that any equipment used during inspection does 

not in any way contaminate the potable water stored in the tanks.  Additionally, Contractor will 

not disrupt the services occurring where the tanks are located. 

Inspections shall be geared towards performance of comprehensive internal and external 

examination that will review the structural, sanitary, security and installed coating conditions of 

each tank.  At a minimum, the following items will be inspected on each of the two (2) tanks: 

 Condition of concrete or steel on the interior; approximate percent of cracking, 

corrosion, type of failure and locations of concentrated spalling; 

 Corrosion of any exposed reinforcing materials.  

 Condition of membrane covers, including flexibility and UV damage.  

 OSHA safety compliance of tank ladders and hatches.  

 Sanitary conditions of tank hatches, vents, and other penetrations.  

 Measurement of bottom sediment depths in at least five (5) equidistant locations across 
diameter.  

 Collect a sample of the bottom sediment, coating chips, and other loose pieces/parts for 
analysis by the City.  

35



2 | P a g e  
 

 Percentage of coating failure and corrosion on all coated surfaces.  

 Condition and operation of cathodic protection systems.  

 Condition of foundation and anchors.  

 Collect internal paint samples for metals analysis.  

 Inspect elevated tanks for signs or instability or shifting by observing the tower posts, 
tension rods, and riser pipe.  

 All fasteners, such as cotter pins, anchor bolts, and turn-buckles, to be inspected for 
corrosion or signs of failure. 

 
A written final report for each tank will be provided to the City within forty-five (45) days of 
completion of the inspection.   

 The final report will reference any and all applicable OSHA, EPA, AWWA, NFPA and any 
other essential requirements.   

 The final report will be accompanied by a high quality color DVD video depicting the 
inspection of all underwater internal surfaces, including the roof of each tank.   

 The video shall contain a full view of the interior of each tank, especially the bottom and 
lower walls where sediment collects. 

 The report will contain a minimum of five (5) measure of sediment depth across the 
tank diameter for each of the two (2) tanks. 

 The report will contain detailed recommendations, as appropriate, for any safety, 
sanitary, rehabilitation or other requirements along with estimated costs.   

 The report must be prepared by a NACE Certified Inspector and must be approved by a 
Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Alaska.   

 Two copies of the final report will be submitted along with 2 copies of the DVD of the 
inspection.   

 
B. Cleaning 

Contractor will provide in-service removal of accumulated bottom sediment on both tanks. All 
cleaning to include up to one hour of debris removal per tank at no additional cost to the City.  
Sediment to be discharged onto the tundra. 
 
Specifically, Contractor will remove a maximum of twenty-four (24”) inches of sludge between 
both tanks.  No sludge beyond the maximum is to be removed.  The division of sediment to be 
removed from each tank is to be determined based upon the amount of sludge estimated in 
each tank once inside.  The tank which appears to have the most sludge will get up to sixteen 
(16”) inches removed with the other tank getting the remaining eight (8”) inches removed.  If 
both tanks appear to have an equal amount of sediment, Contractor may divide the removal 
evenly: twelve (12”) inches per tank.  Contractor to use their best professional judgment.   
 
Upon completion of the sludge removal, Contractor to provide the City with an estimate of how 
much sludge remains inside each tank. 
 
Contractor will not disrupt the services occurring where the tanks are located. 

36



3 | P a g e  
 

Section 02 Personnel & Location of Services 

Personnel shall be limited to employees of Bethel Builders and its subcontractor Liquid 

Engineering Corporation.   

Services shall be performed by Contractor at the two (2) described City of Bethel locations.   

Section 03 Term of Agreement 

The Term of this Agreement shall initially be from August 1, 2018 to October 15, 2018 unless 

terminated sooner as provided herein.   

Section 04 Standard of Performance 

Contractor shall perform its services consistent with generally accepted standards presently 

maintained by other practicing Contractors engaged in the same type of work.  Upon written 

notice to Contractor and by mutual agreement of the parties, Contractor will correct those 

services not meeting such a standard without additional compensation.   

Section 05 Compensation 

A. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the CITY shall pay Contractor a lump sum fee 
of Ninety Nine Thousand Two Hundred Forty Nine ($99,249) Dollars.   

B. Upon completion of the work, Contractor shall submit an invoice to CITY by the end of the 
month during which Services are performed.  Payment will be processed promptly upon 
receipt of invoice and in no event will payment be issued more than thirty (30) days from 
receipt of invoice.   

C. All invoices must be submitted in duplicate and addressed as follows: 

Public Works Director 
City of Bethel Public Works Department 
PO Box 1388 
Bethel AK 99559-1388 
 

D. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the CITY shall not provide any additional 
compensation, payment, service or other thing of value to Contractor in connection with 
performance of Agreed upon duties.  The parties understand and agree that, except as 
otherwise provided in this section, administrative overhead and other indirect or direct costs 
Contractor may incur in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement have already 
been included in computation of Contractor’s fee and may not be charged to the CITY.   

37



4 | P a g e  
 

Section 06 Independent Contractor 
 
CITY and Contractor agree that Contractor is an independent contractor and shall not represent 
itself as an agent or employee of CITY for any purpose in the performance of Contractor’s 
duties under this Agreement.  Accordingly, Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, as well as business license fees arising out of Contractor’s 
activities in accordance with this Agreement.  For purposes of this Agreement, taxes shall  
include, but not be limited to, Federal and State Income, Social Security and Unemployment 
Insurance taxes.   
 
Section 07 Health and Safety 
 
Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing Services 
under this Agreement. 
 
Section 08 Non-Discrimination 
 
Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual identity, sexual orientation, national origin, handicap, 
pregnancy, parenthood, age, marital status, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the 
Vietnam War era.  Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual identity, sexual orientation, national origin, handicap, pregnancy, 
parenthood, age, marital status, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the Vietnam War 
era.  Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the following:  employment, upgrading, 
demotions, or transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and 
participation in recreational and educational activities. 
 
Section 09 Performance and Default 
 
If, through any cause, Contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the 
obligations under this Agreement, then CITY shall thereafter have the right to immediately 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Contractor and specifying the effective 
date thereof.  In that event, all finished or unfinished deliverable items under this Agreement 
prepared by Contractor shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property, and Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 
completed on such materials.  In such event, Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the 
CITY for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of this Agreement, and the CITY 
may withhold any payment due Contractor for the purpose of setoff until such time as the 
exact amount of damages due the CITY from such breach can be determined. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, Contractor shall be entitled to not less than ten (10) days written notice to cure 

38



5 | P a g e  
 

any reasonably curable condition alleged to constitute a default by CITY before a breach of 
this Agreement shall be declared by CITY as a result thereof.   
 
In case of default by Contractor the city may procure the services from other sources and hold 
Contractor responsible for any excess cost occasioned thereby.  In addition, in the event of 
default by Contractor under this Agreement, or upon the Contractor filing a petition for 
bankruptcy or the entering of a judgment of bankruptcy by or against the Contractor the CITY 
may immediately cease doing business with Contractor immediately terminate for cause all 
existing contracts the CITY has with Contractor and de-bar Contractor] from doing future 
business with the CITY. 
 
Section 10 Causes Beyond Control 
 
In the event Contractor is prevented by a cause or causes beyond control of Contractor from 
performing any obligation of this Agreement, non-performance resulting from such cause or 
causes shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement which will render Contractor 
liable for damages or give rights to the cancellation of the Agreement for cause.  However, if 
and when such cause or causes cease to prevent performance, Contractor shall exercise all 
reasonable diligence to resume and complete performance of the obligation with the least 
possible delay. The phrase "cause or causes beyond control," as used in this section, means any 
one or more of the following causes which are not attributable to the fault or negligence of 
Contractor and which prevent the performance of Contractor fire, explosions, acts of God, war, 
orders or law of duly constituted public authorities, and other major uncontrollable and 
unavoidable events, all of the foregoing which must actually prevent Contractor from 
performing the terms of the Agreement as set forth herein.  Events which are peculiar to 
Contractor and would not prevent another company from performing, including, but not 
limited to financial difficulties, are not causes beyond the control of Contractor .  The CITY will 
determine whether the event preventing Contractor from performing is a cause beyond 
Contractor’s control. 
 
Section 11 Confidentiality 
 
All data and information, both written and verbal, furnished to Contractor by CITY shall be 
regarded as confidential, shall remain the sole property of the CITY and shall be held in 
confidence and safekeeping by Contractor for the sole use of the parties and Contractor under 
the terms of this Agreement.  Contractor agrees that its officers, employees, and agents will not 
disclose to any person, Contractor or entity other than CITY or CITY’s designated legal counsel, 
accountants or practice management consultants any information about CIT, its practice or 
billing, or any of the patients of CITY.   

Section 12 City not Responsible for Expenses 
 
CITY shall not be liable to Contractor for any expenses paid or incurred by Contractor unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing. 

39



6 | P a g e  
 

Section 13 Equipment 
 
Contractor shall supply, at is sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and/or supplies 
required to provide the Services hereunder, unless otherwise agreed to in writing. 
  
Section 14 Modifications 
 
The parties may mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement.  Modifications to the 
Agreement shall be incorporated into the Agreement by written amendments.  
   
Section 15 Insurance 
 
The Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully 
authorized to do business in the State of Alaska as admitted insurers or surplus lines insurers 
approved by City, such insurance as will protect the Contractor from claims set forth below and 
others, which may arise out of or as a result from the Contractor  operations under this 
contract, whether such operations are by the Contractor or by sub-contractors or by anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may 
be liable.  Restrictions, conditions or exclusions contained in the insurance policies shall not 
reduce the obligations of the Contractor under this contract. 
 

a) Claims under worker’s compensation, employers liability, disability benefits, 
and other similar employee benefit acts which are applicable to the work to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

 
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, mental anguish, sickness, disease or death 
of any person other than the Contractor’s employees. 

 
Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability insurance coverage which 
are sustained (1) by a person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the 
employment of such person by the Contractor or (2) by any other person or entity. 
 
Claims for damages, other than to the product supplied, or to the services performed,  
itself because of damage to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use 
resulting therefrom. 
 
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, including death of a person, or damage to 
property arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use  of any motor vehicle. 

  
Claims involving the Contractor’s contractual obligations and assumption of liability 
under this Agreement. 

 
Liability insurance shall include at a minimum, all major divisions of coverage and be on 
a commercial general liability form including: 

40



7 | P a g e  
 

 
  Premises/Operations Liability 
  Products/Completed Operations Liability 
  Personal/Advertising Injury Liability 
  Fire Damage Liability 
  Medical Payments  
  Professional (Errors & Omissions) Liability (May be a separate policy) 
 

b) The insurance required in this section, including subsection (a), shall be written for not 
less than the limits listed in (c) below or those limits required by law,  whichever limit is 
higher.  Insurance, whether written on an occurrence, or a claims-made basis, shall be 
maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the work to the 
date of final payment, or termination of any insurance required to be maintained after 
final payment. 

 
c) The insurance required in this section including subsection (a) shall be written for not 

 less than the following limits: 
 

1. Worker’s Compensation Insurance:    
  Statutory Requirements of the State of Alaska, and  

Employer Liability Insurance limits of:       
  $500,000.00 each accident. 
  $500,000.00 disease each employee. 
  $500,000.00 disease policy limit. 
 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Form CG0001 04/13 or equivalent. 
  $1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Occurrence 
  $1,000,000.00 Personal/Advertising Injury Limit of Liability per Occurrence 
  $2,000,000.00 Annual General Aggregate Limit of Liability 

$2,000,000.00 Annual Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit of                                                                  
             Liability 

  $100,000.00 Fire Damage Limit of Liability Any One Fire 
  $5,000.00 Medical Payment Limit Any One Person 
 

3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: Form CA0001 03/10 or equivalent. 
  $1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Accident 
  For all Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Vehicles. 
   
 

d) Worker’s compensation insurance and employers liability insurance shall be in 
compliance with the statutory requirements of the State of Alaska, and any other 
statutory obligation, whether federal or state pertaining to compensation of injured 
employees.  The worker’s compensation insurance and employers liability insurance 
shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision in favor of CITY. 

41



8 | P a g e  
 

 
e) The commercial general liability insurance shall name CITY as an additional insured as 

respects this contract. 
 

f) Contractor’s required insurance is subject to review and adjustment by CITY, who may 
require reasonable changes in the amounts and types of insurance based upon changes 
of risk. Contractor shall be provided a written explanation for any such changes. 

 
g) Certificates of insurance acceptable to CITY shall be filed with CITY prior to the  

commencement of the beginning of any services by the Contractor These certificates 
and the insurance policies shall contain a provision that the policy shall not be canceled 
until prior written notice has been sent to the insured Contractor. 

 
If any of the insurance policies required above are canceled for any reason, the 
Contractor shall provide immediate notice to CITY of the cancellation and either 
provide:  evidence of replacement or notice of reinstatement. Immediately in this 
section means within five (5) business days of receipt of cancellation by the Contractor. 

 
 Failure to maintain these insurance provisions required of the Contractor or failure to 

immediately notify CITY of cancellation shall be considered a material breach of this 
contract by the Contractor subject to termination provisions of this contract.   

 
 Notice described above shall be by confirmed delivery to the following location: 
 
  City of Bethel 
  Attn: Risk Manager 
  PO Box 1388 
  Bethel AK 99559-1388 
 
 
Section 16 Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials 
 
No material produced, in whole or in part, under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in 
the United States or in any other country.  CITY shall have unrestricted authority to publish, 
disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials 
prepared under this Agreement. 
 
Section 17 Jurisdiction; Choice of Law 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska. 
 
 
 
 

42



9 | P a g e  
 

Section 18 Time Bar to Legal Action 
 
All legal actions by either party against the other arising out of or in any way connected with 
the services to be performed hereunder shall be barred and under no circumstances shall any 
such claim be initiated by either party after three (3) years have passed from the earlier of the 
date of substantial completion of services or the date of termination of the Agreement.   
 
Section 19 Non-Waiver 
 
No waiver of a breach of any covenant, term or condition of this Agreement shall not be a 
waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other covenant, term or condition or a 
waiver of the covenant, term or condition itself.   
 
Section 20 Defense and Indemnification  
 
Contractor agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold CITY harmless 
from any damage, liability or cost (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) to 
the extent caused by Contractor’s negligent acts, errors, or omissions in the performance of 
professional services under this Agreement and those of its sub consultants or anyone for 
whom Contractor] may be legally liable.  Under no circumstance is the CITY obligated to 
indemnify Contractor for Contractor’s own negligence.   
 
Section 21 Dispute Resolution    
 
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise between the parties under this Agreement, the 
CITY and Contractor agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement shall be submitted first to nonbinding mediation.   
 
Section 22 Understanding 
 
Contractor acknowledges that it has read and understands the terms of this Agreement, has 
had the opportunity to review the same with counsel of their choice, and is executing this 
Agreement of their own free will. 
 
Section 23 Severability 
 
If any section or clause of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or 
is otherwise invalid under the law, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect.  
 
Section 24 Notices 
 
Any notice required pertaining to the subject matter of the Agreement shall be personally 

delivered or mailed by prepaid first-class, registered or certified mail to the following address: 

43



10 | P a g e  
 

CITY:   City of Bethel 
   Attn: Legal Department 
   PO Box 1388 
   Bethel AK 99559 
 

CONTRACTOR  Bethel Builders 
   Jim Cehula 
   2605 Denali Street, Suite 100 
   Anchorage AK 99503 
 

CITY OF BETHEL    BETHEL BUILDERS  

 

            

By: Peter A. Williams    By: Jim Cehula     

Title:  City Manager    Title:  General Manager   

Dated:       Dated:     

 

 

44



18-56

45



Page 1 of 14  

  

City of Bethel  

Bulk Fuel Supply 

Agreement  

  

 
  

    

August 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020 

  

46



Page 2 of 14  

  

Table of Contents  

1. Effectiveness and Term          4 

2. Provision of Fuel            4 

3. Provision of Fuel – At the Pump         4 

4. Quantities            5 

5. Price – Year’s One and Two          5 

6. Invoices and Payments          5 

7. Records            5 

8. Insurance Requirements          6-9 

9. Fuel, Title, Warranty and Indemnity        9 

10. Passing Title and Risk in Fuel         9 

11. Duty to Notify           9 

12. Duties of City           9 

13. Contractor’s Rights to Interrupt Supplies of Fuel      9 

14. Fuel Quality and City’s Right to Reject Fuel       10 

15. Contractor’s Delays and Default         10 

16. Force Majeure           10-11 

17. Liabilities and Indemnities         11-12 

18. Pollution Prevention and Responsibility        12 

19. Fuel Contract Extension/Renewal        12-13 

20. Termination           13-15 

21. Dispute Resolution          15 

22. Governing Law           15 

23. Enforcement           15 

24. Representation and Warranties         16 

25. Notices            16-17 

26. Confidentiality & Security         17 

27. Amendments           17 

28. Waiver            17 

47



Page 3 of 14  

  

29. Successors           17 

30. Assignment and Transfer of Interest        18 

31. Severability           17 

32. Relationship of Parties          18 

33. Good Faith            18 

34. Further Assurance          18 

35. Entirety of Agreement          18 

36. Costs            18 

37. Counterparts           19 

    

  

  

  
  

48



Page 4 of 14  

  

Bulk Fuel Agreement  

This Agreement is made this    day of July 2018, by and between the City of Bethel, a municipal 

corporation (hereinafter “City”) and DELTA WESTERN, INC. (hereinafter “Contractor”).    

WITNESSETH:  

 WHEREAS, Contractor is engaged in the business of providing fuel; and  

 WHEREAS the City of Bethel desires to purchase fuel in bulk from Contractor, subject to and in 

accordance with the Terms of this Agreement.  

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

1. Effectiveness and Term  
This Agreement shall become effective on August 1, 2018 and shall continue to have effect 
thereafter until June 30, 2020.  Contractor shall have up to three (3) options to extend/renew 
the contract in accordance with Section 19 below.    
  

2. Provision of Fuel  
Contractor shall provide Fuel to the City at the Delivery Points outlined in Attachment A,  and 
shall ensure there is sufficient fuel in each tank outlined in Attachment A to guarantee the 
tanks will not run out of fuel after regular use.  It will be the sole responsibility of Contractor 
to develop a schedule for monitoring fuel levels in each tank to ensure the tanks have 
sufficient fuel to keep from running out.    
  
Fuel for the location at Attachment B, shall only be delivered once per month from October 
to April, no later than the fourteenth (14th) day of each of the months specified.  
  
Fuel shall be made available for purchase by City employees for City vehicles as outlined in 
Section 3.  
  

3. Provision of Fuel – At the Pump  
Fuel at the pump will be provided by Contractor.  The City will provide and maintain for 
Contractor a list of employees and vehicles authorized to purchase gas or diesel fuel at the 
pump.  These employees will be issued a Fuel Access Card issued by Contractor.  
  
Contractor will ensure only those authorized employees and authorized vehicles are allowed 
to charge their fuel purchases to the City of Bethel account.  In addition, any employee 
attempting to charge to the City’s account will be required to show either a City issued 
employee badge or other City approved credentials.    
  

Contractor will submit an invoice monthly for all charges.  Such invoice shall include a 

summary of sales by vehicle and product.   

49



Page 5 of 14  

  

4. Quantities  
Quantities of Fuel supplied shall be finally determined in accordance with the measurements 
provided in Attachment A.  
  

5. Price:  
 5.1  Heating Oil Delivered: shall be charged at the rate of $3.33 per gallon.  

  
5.2 HF#1 Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel (ULSD) Fuel Delivered: shall be charged at the rate of 
$3.33 per gallon.  
  

 5.3  Gasoline at the Pump: shall be billed at the rate of $4.15 per gallon.  
  
5.4 HF#1 Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel (ULSD) Fuel at the pump: shall be billed at the rate of 
$5.07 per gallon.  
  
5.5 “Gallon” shall be defined as a U.S. standard gallon of 231 cubic inches at 60 degrees 
Fahrenheit.    

 
In year two of the Contract, fuel will receive a discount on the lowest advertised rate as follows: 
 5.6 Heating Oil Delivered:  $1.009 discount per gallon 
  
 5.7 HF#1 Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel (ULSD) Fuel Delivered: $1.009 discount per gallon    
 
 5.8 Gasoline at the Pump:  $0.35 per gallon discount 
 
 5.9 HF#1 Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel Fuel at the Pump: $0.35 per gallon discount.   
 
6. Invoices and Payments  

6.1 Contractor shall invoice the City monthly.  All invoices shall be accompanied by supporting 
calculations and documentation of the amounts claimed.  

6.2 The total amount to be paid under this Agreement shall be calculated on the basis of the 
total price per gallon delivered or sold under this Agreement.  No claim for extra work or 
cost shall be allowed unless as outlined in this Agreement.   

6.3 City shall pay all undisputed invoices and all undisputed portions of invoices within thirty  
(30) days of receipt.  

6.4 In the event City fails to timely pay to Contractor, the amount due in a timely manner, 
interest shall accrue at the rate of five (5%) percent per annum.  

  
7. Records  

Contractor and City shall each maintain and shall make available, on reasonable notice, for 
inspection and examination of the other Party, at all reasonable times, all records relating to 
this Agreement and of transactions performed pursuant to this Agreement for a minimum of 
five (5) years from the date of the record.  If any Dispute arises between the Parties, all 
records relating to matters involved in such Dispute shall be preserved until the resolution of 

50



Page 6 of 14  

  

such Dispute.  Certified copies of such records as are required to be maintained by this 
Agreement shall be made available at the requesting Party’s cost and expense.  
  

8. Insurance Requirements  

During the term of this Agreement and any extensions thereto, Contractor shall purchase from 
and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in the State of Alaska 
as admitted insurers or surplus insurers as approved by City, such insurance as will protect the 
City from claims set forth below and others, which may arise out of or as a result of the 
Contractor’s operations under this Agreement, whether such operations are by the Contractor 
or by a sub-contractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone 
for whose acts any of them may be liable.  Restrictions, conditions or exclusions contained in the 
insurance policies shall not reduce the obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement.   
  

8.1 Claims under worker’s compensation, employer’s liability, disability benefits, and other 
similar employee benefit acts which are applicable to the work to be performed under 
this Agreement.    
  
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, mental anguish, sickness, disease or 
death of any person other than Contractor’s employees.  
  
Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability insurance coverage which 
are sustained (1) by a person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to 
the employment of such person by the Contractor, or (2) by any other person or entity.  
  
Claims for damages, other than to the product supplied, or to the services performed, 
itself because of damage to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use 
resulting therefrom.    
  
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, including mental anguish, death of a 
person, or damage to property arising out of ownership, maintenance or use of any 
motor vehicle.  
  
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, including mental anguish, death of a 
person or damage to property arising out of the discharge, accidental or otherwise of 
any pollutant onto any property of the City, or any other owner, other than the 
Contractor.  Transportation risk must be included.  
  
Claims involving the Contractor’s contractual obligations and assumption of liability 
under this Agreement.  
  
Liability insurance shall include, at a minimum, all major divisions of coverage and be 
on a commercial general liability form including:  
  
Premises/Operations liability  

51



Page 7 of 14  

  

Products/Completed Operations Liability  
Personal/Advertising Injury Liability  
Environmental Liability  
Fire Damage Liability  
Medical Payments  
  

8.2 The insurance required under this Agreement shall be written for not less than the limits 
listed herein or those limits required by law, whichever limit is higher.  Insurance, 
whether written on an occurrence, or a claims-made basis, shall be maintained 
without interruption from the date of commencement of the work to the date of final 
payment, or termination of any insurance required to be maintained after final 
payment.  
  

8.3 Worker’s Compensation Insurance - as required by AS 23.30.045, for all employees of the 
Contractor engaged in work under this Agreement. The coverage shall include 
Employer Liability Insurance Limits of no less than:  a) $500,000 each accident;   
b) $500,000 disease each employee;  
c) $500,000 disease policy limit.  

  
 8.4  Commercial General Liability Insurance – Form CG001 04-13 or equivalent.  

(a) $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Occurrence  
(b) $1,000,000 Personal Injury Limit of Liability per Occurrence  
(c) $1,000,000 Annual General Aggregate Limit of Liability  
(d) $2,000,000 Annual Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit of  

Liability  
(e) $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability for each environmental claim** 

(f) $2,000,000 Combined Aggregate Limit of Liability for environmental 
claims**  

(g) $100,000 Fire Damage Limit of Liability for any one fire  
(h) $5,000 Medical Payment Limit any one person  
  
** Coverage must begin prior to the effective date of this Agreement and must be 
maintained for twenty-four (24) months after the Agreement expires.    
  

 8.5  Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: Form CA001 03/10 or equivalent  
(a) $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Accident For 

all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles  
  

 8.4  Commercial Excess Liability Insurance  
a) $4,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Occurrence  
b) $4,000,000 Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability  
c) Excess of underlying Commercial General Liability Insurance, Environmental 

Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance, and Employer Liability 

Insurance.  

52



Page 8 of 14  

  

   

8.6 Worker’s Compensation insurance and employee liability insurance shall be in 

compliance with the statutory requirements of the State of Alaska, and any other 

statutory obligation, whether federal or state pertaining to compensation of 

injured employees.  The worker’s compensation insurance and employers liability 

insurance shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision in favor of the City.  

  

8.7 The commercial general liability including environmental liability insurance shall 

name the City as an additional insured and contain a waiver of subrogation in favor 

of the City.  

  
8.8 All liability insurance required of the Contractor shall be primary.  All liability 

insurance carried by the City is declared to be excess and non-contributory of any 

insurance carried by the Contractor or subcontractors.  

  
8.9 Contractor’s required insurance is subject to review and adjustment by the City, 

who may require reasonable changes in the amount and types of insurance based 

upon changes of risk.  Contractor shall be provided a written explanation of any 

such changes.  

  
8.10 Certificates of insurance, acceptable to City, shall be filed with the City prior to the 

commencement of any services by Contractor.  These certificates and the 

insurance policies shall contain a provision that the policy shall not be canceled 

until prior written notice has been sent to the City.  

  
8.11 The Contractor shall furnish evidence of insurance to the City before June 1st 

annually. The evidence shall be issued to the City and shall be either a certificate 

of insurance or the policy declaration page with all required endorsements 

attached and must:  

1) Denote the type, amount, and class of operations covered;  

2) Show the effective (and retroactive) dates of the policy;   

3) Show the expiration date of the policy;   

4) Include all required endorsements;   

5) Be executed by the carrier's representative; and   

6) If a certificate of insurance, include the following statement: The insurance 
carrier agrees that it shall notify the City, in writing, at least 30 days before 

cancellation of any coverage or reduction in any limits of liability.”   
  

8.12 Failure to maintain the insurance provisions required of the Contractor or failure 

to immediately notify the City of cancelation shall be considered a material breach 

53



Page 9 of 14  

  

of this Agreement by the Contractor, subject to the termination provisions of this 

Agreement.   

  

8.13 The City’s acceptance of deficient evidence of insurance does not constitute a 

waiver of Agreement requirements.        

9. Fuel, Title, Warranty and Indemnity  
Contractor warrants that it shall have title to all Fuel supplied under this Agreement 
immediately prior to passing title in Fuel to City at each Delivery Point and shall otherwise 
supply Fuel to each Delivery Point free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and claims 
whatsoever.  
  
Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold City harmless against all third party claims for 
damages, costs, losses, and expenses arising from or out of a breach of the warranty in section 
9, including claims by any third party or parties for any royalties, taxes, license fees or charges 
applicable to Fuel supplied.  
  

10. Passing Title and Risk in Fuel  
Title and, subject to the passing of good title, risk in the Fuel supplied by Contractor shall pass 
from Contractor to City at the relevant Delivery Point.  
  

11. Duty to Notify  
Without prejudice to the other obligations in this Agreement:  

11.1 Contractor shall, as soon as practicable after it becomes aware of the same, inform the 
City of any circumstances which affect, or will affect, its ability to supply fuel under this 
Agreement; and  

11.2 City shall, as soon as reasonably practicable after it becomes aware of the same, inform 
Contractor of any circumstances which affect, or will affect, its ability to receive Fuel into 
its facilities.    

  
12. Duties of City  

City shall provide safe access to premises, including snow and ice removal.  Contractor may 
refuse to deliver if, in their sole discretion, access to the Premises is not in a safe condition 
for service.  In such situation, Contractor shall give notice to City within three (3) Business 
Days of failure to deliver in order for City to correct the problem and allow for re-delivery.  
Contractor may impose a reasonable fee for having to respond to the location a second time.  
  

13. Contractor’s Rights to Interrupt Supplies of Fuel  
Contractor shall be entitled to interrupt the supply of Fuel under the following 
circumstances:  

13.1 Where undisputed payments are due and owing to Contractor by City under this 
Agreement; or  

13.2 Subject to Clause 16, where and to the extent there is an Event of Force Majeure 
affecting the supply by Contractor or receipt by City of the Fuel.  

54



Page 10 of 14  

  

14. Fuel Quality and City’s Right to Reject Fuel  

Fuel supplied by Contractor under this Agreement shall conform to American Society for 

Testing and Materials (ASTM) D1250 (latest version.  

  

15. Contractor’s Delays and Default  
Where Contractor is delayed in the supply of Fuel for more than four (4) calendar days from 
the original date for delivery under clause 2 for any reason (other than an Event of Force 
Majeure) then City shall be entitled on notice to Contractor either to accept the delay in the 
supply or cancel the supply and the quantity canceled shall constitute Shortfall and breach of 
this Agreement.  
  

16. Force Majeure  
16.1 Events of Force Majeure:  For the purposes of this Agreement, an “Event of Force 

Majeure” means any circumstance not within the reasonable control of the Party 
affected, but only if and to the extent that (i) such circumstance, despite the exercise 
of reasonable diligence, cannot be, or caused to be, prevented, avoided, or removed 
by such Party, and (ii) such circumstance materially adversely affects the ability of the 
Party to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and such Party has taken all 
reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to 
avoid the effect of such event on the Party’s ability to perform its obligations under 
this Agreement and to mitigate the consequences thereof.  

16.2  Instances of Force Majeure:  Subject to the provisions of Clause 16.1, Events of Force 
Majeure shall include, but not be limited to:  
(a) Fire, chemical or radioactive contamination or ionizing radiation, earthquakes, 

lightning, cyclones, hurricanes, floods, droughts, or such other extreme weather 
or environmental conditions, unanticipated geological or ground conditions, 
epidemic, famine, plague or other natural calamities and acts of God;  

(b) Explosion, accident, breakage of Facilities, plant or equipment, structural collapse, 
or chemical contamination caused by a person not being the affected Party or one 
of its contractors or subcontractors or any of their respective employees or agents;  

(c) Acts of War (whether declared or undeclared), invasion, acts of terrorists, 
blockade, embargo, riot, public disorder, violent demonstrations, insurrection, 
rebellion, civil commotion, and sabotage;  

(d) Strikes, lockouts, work stoppage, labor disputes, and such other industrial action 
by workers related to or in response to the terms and conditions of employment 
of those workers or others with whom they are affiliated save when such event is 
directly related to, or in direct response to any employment policy or practice 
(with respect to wages or otherwise) of the Party whose workers resort to such 
action;  

(e) Any legal prohibition on either Party’s ability to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, including passing of a statute, decree, regulation or order by a 
Competent Authority prohibiting that Party from performing its obligations under 
this Agreement;  

55



Page 11 of 14  

  

provided that breakdown of any plant, equipment or vehicles (unless due to an Event of 
Force Majeure) or unavailability of funds shall not constitute an Event of Force Majeure.  
  

16.3 Consequence of Force Majeure: Either Party shall be excused from performance and 
shall not be in default in respect to any obligation hereunder to the extent that failure 
to perform such obligation is due to an Event of Force Majeure.  

  
16.4 Notice of Force Majeure: If a party wishes to claim protection in respect of an Event 

of Force Majeure, it shall as soon as possible following the occurrence or date of 
commencement of such Event of Force Majeure and shall thereafter keep the other 
Party informed until such time as it is able to perform its obligations.  The Parties shall 
use their reasonable  endeavors to:  
  
(a) Overcome the effects of the Event of Force Majeure as soon as practicable;  
(b) Mitigate the effect of any delay occasioned by any Event of Force Majeure; 

including by recourse to acceptable alternative sources of Fuel (which acceptance 
shall not be unreasonably withheld by either Party); and  

(c) To ensure resumption of normal performance of this Agreement as soon as 
reasonably practicable and shall perform their obligations to the maximum extent 
practicable,  

  
provided that neither Party shall be obligated to settle any strike, lock out, work stoppage, 
labor dispute or such other industrial action by its employees.    
  

17. Liabilities and Indemnities  
17.1 Contractor Indemnity:    

17.1.1 Contractor shall be responsible for any third party claim for any injury to or loss 
or damage to property of any person (including reasonable legal fees)  
arising out of transport, delivery and transfer of Fuel up to the Delivery Point 
(each referred to as a “Contractor Third Party Claim”) to the extent caused by 
any negligent act or omission of Contractor, its officers or employees.  

17.1.2 Contractor shall fully indemnify and hold City, its officers and employees 
harmless in respect of Contractor Third Party Claims provided that the 
indemnity shall not extend to, and City hereby waives any claim against 
Contractor  Third Party Claims to the extent caused by any negligent act or 
omission of City, its officers or employees.  

  
17.2 City Indemnity:  

17.2.1 City shall not be responsible for any third party claim for any injury to or loss or 
damage to property of any person (including reasonable legal fees) arising out 
of transfer, storage and use of Fuel at and from the Delivery Point (each referred 
to as a “City Third Party Claim”).  

56



Page 12 of 14  

  

17.2.2 To the extent permitted by law and to the extent there is a council appropriation 
to cover such occurrence, City shall fully indemnify and hold Contractor, its 
Affiliates, officers, contractors, employees, and agents harmless in respect of 
City Third Party Claims provided that the indemnity shall not extend to, and 
Contractor hereby waives any claim against City Third Party Claims to the extent 
caused by any negligent act or omission Contractor, its Affiliates, officers, 
employees, contractors and agents.  

  
17.3 Right to Defend Actions: The indemnifying Party shall have the right, but not the 

duty, to assume the defense of any third party claim indemnified in clause 17.1 or 
17.2, as the case may be.  Any Party shall, as soon as practicable after receiving 
notice of any claim brought against it, deliver to the other indemnifying Party full 
particulars thereof and shall render all reasonable assistance requested by such 
Party in the defense of such claim.  
  

17.4 Indemnified Party not to Compromise:  
17.4.1 Where any Party has an obligation under clause 17.1 or 17.2, as the case may 

be, to indemnify the other Party, such other Party shall not compromise or in 
any way settle any claim, lawsuit, action or cause of action without the express 
written consent of the other Party who has the obligation of indemnifying under 
clause 17.1 or 17.2, as the case may be.  Where such consent is not obtained 
prior to such compromise in settlement, the Party who had the obligation of 
indemnifying shall be released and discharged from all obligations under clause 
17.1 or 17.2, as the case may be.  

17.4.2 Any payment payable by the indemnifying Party to the indemnified Party 
pursuant to this Section 17 shall be paid within forty-five (45) days from the date 
on which a claim for such payment accrues to the indemnified Party under this 
Agreement.    

  
18. Pollution Prevention and Responsibility  
  In the event of a spill, escape or discharge of oil or other product occurs and causes or 
threatens to cause pollution damage (“Spill”), the Party responsible for the Spill shall undertake 
all measures reasonably necessary to prevent or mitigate the pollution damage.  Any and all 
costs or expenses incurred as a result of any measures so taken shall be at the expense of the 
Party creating or causing the spill, escape or discharge.   
  

 The Party who caused the spill, escape or discharge shall be responsible to indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless the other Party from any and all claims, costs, expenses, clean-up costs, 

fines, losses, penalties, damages or other liability incurred as a result of the Spill.  

  
19. Fuel Contract Extension/Renewals  
 Contractor shall have the option to extend/renew this Agreement up to three (3) consecutive 
times as follows:  

57



Page 13 of 14  

  

  
19.1 Contractor shall provide City with written notice of its intention to renew the Agreement 

at least ninety (60) days prior to the Agreement Expiration (approximately March 30).  
Renewal notices shall state the following:  

(a) The applicable rate for all types of fuel specified under this contract during the 
new one (1) year term**; and  

(b) Any significant changes requested to the existing Agreement; and  
(c) Any proposed changes to the scope of services to be performed under the 

Agreement.    
 19.2  Upon receipt of a Notice to Extend/Renew the Agreement, the City shall:  

(a) Ensure that Contractor continues to be eligible to contract with the City 
[i.e., maintains a valid City of Bethel business license, a valid State of Alaska 
business license and is not delinquent on any sales taxes or other fees with 
the City];  

(b) Verify that Contractor’s certificates of insurance are up to date; (c) Update 
Attachment A; and  

(d) Notify Contractor of any significant changes requested to the existing 
Agreement.  

19.3 If City determines Contractor remains eligible and the increased rate for fuel is 
acceptable to City, then City shall give notice to Contractor within forty-five (45) 
days of receipt of Notice of Request to Renew/Extend Contract that it intends to 
renew.  At that time a contract extension shall be prepared and executed by both 
parties.    

 
** In the event Contractor is unable to provide firm prices at the time the renewal notice is due, 
Contractor may substitute a discount amount over lowest advertised price in town as a 
substitute.  Such substitute shall remain valid until firm prices can be set by Contractor which 
shall be no later than June 1st of each year.  Should this event occur, City to retain its option to 
cancel the renewal contract and go back to procurement should the firm prices not be deemed 
acceptable to City.   
 
20. Termination  
 20.1  Events of Default  

20.1.1 City’s Event of Default: Each of the events described below shall constitute a City 
Event of Default:  
(a) A material breach by City of any obligation under this Agreement, which 

(where capable of remedy) has not been remedied within ten (10) days 
following notice from Contractor stating that such breach has occurred, 
identifying the breach and demanding it to be remedied, provided that if City 
has diligently and as quickly as possible commenced the remedial action 
necessary but is unable to complete it within ten (10) days, it shall be allowed 
such further period as may be reasonable to complete the remedial action, not 
exceeding another thirty (30) days;  

58



Page 14 of 14  

  

(b) City has made material misrepresentation in the representations and 
warranties set out in this Agreement and has not disclosed any material fact 
which renders any such representation or warranty materially misleading;  

(c) The reorganization, merger, consolidation, amalgamation, dissolution or 
reconstruction of City, except to the extent that it does not affect the ability of 
the resulting entity to perform its obligations under this Agreement;  

(d) Except for the purposes permitted under subsection (c), the occurrence of any 
of the following events (other than as a direct result of Contractor Event of 
Default):  
(i) Passing of a resolution or initiation of any proceeding for the 

bankruptcy, insolvency, winding up, liquidation of or other similar 
proceedings relating to City;  

(ii) The appointment of a trustee, liquidator, custodian or a similar person 
in a proceeding referred to in paragraph (d)(i), which appointment has 
not been set aside or stayed within sixty (60) days of such appointment; 
or  

(iii) The making by a court having jurisdiction of an order winding up or 
otherwise confirming the bankruptcy or insolvency of City, which order 
has not been set aside or stayed within sixty (60) days; and  

(e) City ceasing to hold a license, permit or consent, as a result of breach by City 
of the terms and conditions of such license, permit or consent, making it 
unlawful for City to operate.  
 

20.1.2 Contractor Event of Default: Each of the events described below shall constitute a 
Contractor Event of Default:  
(a) A material breach by Contractor of any obligation under this Agreement, which 

(where capable of remedy) has not been remedied within ten (10) days 
following notice from City stating that such breach has occurred, identifying 
the breach and demanding it to be remedied, provided that if Contractor has 
diligently and as quickly as possible commenced the remedial action necessary 
but is unable to complete it within ten (10) days, it shall be allowed such 
further period of up to another thirty (30) days as may be reasonably necessary 
to complete the remedial action;  

(b) Contractor has made material misrepresentation in the representations and 
warranties set out in this Agreement and has not disclosed any material fact 
which renders any such representation or warranty materially misleading;  

(c) The reorganization, merger, consolidation, amalgamation, dissolution or 
reconstruction of Contractor, except to the extent that it does not affect the 
ability of the resulting entity to perform its obligations under this Agreement;  

(d) Except for the purposes permitted under subsection (c), the occurrence of any 
of the following events (other than as a direct result of City Event of Default):  
(i) Passing of a resolution or initiation of any proceeding for the 

bankruptcy, insolvency, winding up, liquidation of or other similar 
proceedings relating to Contractor;  

59



Page 15 of 14  

  

(ii) The appointment of a trustee, liquidator, custodian or a similar person 
in a proceeding referred to in paragraph (d)(i), which appointment has 
not been set aside or stayed within sixty (60) days of such appointment; 
or  

(iii) The making by a court having jurisdiction of an order winding up or 
otherwise confirming the bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor, 
which order has not been set aside or stayed within sixty (60) days; and  

(e) Contractor ceasing to hold a license, permit or consent, as a result of breach 
by Contractor of the terms and conditions of such license, permit or consent, 
making it unlawful for City to operate.  

  
20.2 Consequences in the Event of Default: In the case of Contractor Event of Default, City 

may terminate this Agreement and in the case of a City Event of Default,  
Contractor  may terminate this Agreement, in either case by giving a notice 
(“Termination Notice”) to the other whereupon this Agreement shall terminate upon 
the date specified in such Termination Notice or such later date as the Parties may 
have agreed.  

  
20.3 Sole Grounds for Termination: The provisions of this Paragraph 20 shall be the sole 

and exclusive grounds on which the Parties may terminate this Agreement.  
  

20.4 Consequences: On termination of this Agreement for whatever reason, neither Party 
shall have any liability to the other for any damages or loss, whether under this 
Agreement, at law or otherwise, save for claims relating to accrued rights under this 
Agreement prior to its termination.  

  
21. Dispute Resolution  

21.1 If any dispute arises between the Parties in connection with or relating to this Agreement 
(a “Dispute”) the Parties through their respective Chief Executive Officers shall 
attempt to resolve the Dispute through discussion.  

21.2 If a Dispute is not resolved within thirty (30) calendar days by discussion pursuant to 
clause 21.1, the matter may be referred to mediation by either Party.  

21.3 If Mediation fails to resolve the matter, either party is free to request  Arbitration or file 
in court as they deem appropriate.  The City and Contractor both agree that the 
appropriate venue for any legal dispute shall be the Bethel Courthouse.  

  
22. Governing Law  

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed under, the laws of the State of Alaska.   
  

23. Enforcement  
 Subject to any right of appeal, second appeal, revision or any other legal proceeding or remedy 
available to either Party under the law, each Party consents with respect to the enforcement of 
any final judgment against it in any such proceedings, whether in Alaska or outside and to the 
giving of any relief or the issue of any process in connection with such proceedings (including, 

60



Page 16 of 14  

  

without limitation, the making, enforcement or execution against or in respect of any property 
whatsoever, irrespective of its use or intended use, and whether situate in or outside Alaska).  

  
24. Representation and Warranties  
 24.1  Contractor represents and warrants to City that:  

24.1.1 It has the full legal ability and authority to enter into and carry out its obligations 
under this Agreement and this Agreement constitutes a valid, legally binding and 
enforceable obligation of Contractor and does not conflict with the terms of any 
other agreement by which it may be bound;  

24.1.2 All approvals necessary to allow Contractor to enter into this Agreement and to 
carry out the obligations contemplated herein have been given or received and 
shall remain in full force and effect;  

24.1.3 There are no applicable constitutional provisions, laws, regulations, decrees or 
rules of Competent Authorities of Alaska in force on the date of execution of this 
Agreement, which restrict or prohibit the ability of Contractor to enter into and 
perform the terms of this Agreement.  Contractor is not entitled to immunity from 
legal process or jurisdiction on grounds of sovereignty or otherwise; and  

24.1.4 This Agreement does not conflict with any provisions of any law, including any 
regulation of the State of Alaska as in effect on the date of execution of this 
Agreement.    

  
 24.2   City represents and warrants to Contractor that:  

24.2.1 It is a validly existing municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Alaska;  
24.2.2 It has the full legal ability and authority to enter into and carry out its obligations 

under this Agreement and this Agreement constitutes a valid, legally binding and 
enforceable obligation of City and does not conflict  with the terms of any 
agreement by which it may be bound; and   

24.2.3 There are no provisions of any organizational document of City which restrict or 
prohibit the ability of City to enter into and perform the terms of this Agreement.  

 
25. Notices  
 25.1  All notices given under this Agreement are to be in writing [in English] and shall be:  

  
25.1.1 Sent to:  

(a) for City: 
City of Bethel 
Attn: Legal Department 
PO Box 1388  
Bethel AK 99559-1388 

  
(b) for Contractor to:   

Delta Western, Inc. 
Attn: John Cannon 
420 L Street, Suite 101 

61



Page 17 of 14  

  

Anchorage AK 99501 
   

25.1.2 In writing and delivered by hand or sent by first class prepaid post or facsimile 
transmission and deemed to have been received: (a) In case of delivery by hand 
when delivered; or  
(b) In the case of first class prepaid post, on the second (2nd) day following the day 

of posting, or   
(c) In the case of facsimile transmission, at the time of actual receipt,  

  
provided that if, in accordance with the above provisions, any such notice or other 
communication would otherwise be deemed to be given or made outside working hours, such 
notice or other communication shall be deemed to be given or made at the start of working 
hours on the next Business Day.  
  
25.2 Either party may notify the other Parties of a change to its name, relevant addressee, 

address or facsimile number for the purposes of clause 25.1, provided that such 
notification shall only be effective on:   

25.2.1 The date specified in the notification as the date on which the change is to take 
place; or  

25.2.2 If no date is specified or the date specified is less than fifteen (15) Business Days 
after the date on which notice is given, the date falling thirty (30) Business Days 
after notice of any such change has been given.  
  

26. Confidentiality & Security  
 Each party shall take all proper steps to keep confidential any trade secrets or confidential 
information learned about the other Party or its customers during the course of this 
Agreement.    
 Each party shall protect the keys and other secure property of the other party and shall take 
appropriate and reasonable steps to ensure security is maintained.  In the event of a breach 
of security, the Party whose security is breached shall notify the other party as soon as 
practicable.  
  

27. Amendments  
This Agreement may only be amended or varied by the written agreement of both Parties.  

  
28. Waiver  
 No waiver or failure by a Party to insist on the strict performance of this Agreement or to act in 
respect of the defaults of the other Party, and no acceptance of payment or performance during 
the continuance of any such default precludes any right, relief or remedy available to the non-
defaulting Party, and may not be relied on by the other Party as a consent to those defaults.    
  
29. Successors  
 This Agreement binds and ensures to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors 
and permitted assigns.  

62



Page 18 of 14  

  

  
30. Assignment and Transfer of Interest  

 Neither Party to this Agreement shall assign or transfer all of part of its rights, benefits or 
obligations under this Agreement except with the other Party’s written consent.    
  

31. Severability  
  If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.  
  
32. Relationship of Parties  
 This Agreement does not create an association, joint venture, or partnership between the 
Parties. Neither Party has any right, power or authority to enter into any agreement or 
undertaking for, or to act on behalf of, or to act as an agent or representative of, or to otherwise 
bind, the other.  
  
33. Good Faith  
 The Parties undertake to act in good faith in relation to the performance and implementation of 
this Agreement and to take such other reasonable measures as may be necessary for the 
realization of its objectives.    
  
34. Further Assurance  
 Each Party agrees to execute and deliver all such further instruments and do and perform all such 
further acts and things as shall be necessary for the carrying out of the provisions of this 
Agreement.  
 
35. Entirety of Agreement  
 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties in relation to its subject 
matter and, except in case of fraud, all prior representations, negotiations and undertakings of 
any nature whatsoever between the Parties with any bearing on the subject matter of this 
Agreement are superseded and extinguished, and all rights and liabilities arising by reason of 
them, whether accrued or not at the date of this Agreement, are canceled, to the extent they 
have such bearing.  
 
36. Costs  
 Each Party shall bear all costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with entering into this 
Agreement.  
 

 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  

63



Page 19 of 14  

  

37. Counterparts  
 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts all of which taken together shall 
constitute one and the same document.    
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date 
first written above.  
  
CITY OF BETHEL     DELTA WESTERN, INC. 

 

 

            

Peter A. Williams     John Cannon 

City Manager      Vice President, Marketing      

     

  

64



18-12
July 24, 2018

65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



1 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  
907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

 
Council Meetings and Events 
July 24, Regular City Council Meeting  
 
Burial Permits July 1 - 11 
1 Burial Permit was issued.  
 
Passport Applications July 1- 
1 Passport Application  

 
Elections 
The City Clerk’s Office is reaching out to a few members in the community who may be qualified to act as 
the Language Translation Lead for the October Election.  
 
All election notices have been submitted to KYUK for translation and announcement. The Office is also 
purchasing the audio rights to the translation so that we can place them on the City’s website for additional 
assistance and reference by those voters who are low English proficient.  
 
The Office has scheduled an election training September 4.  
 
Declaration of Candidacy Packets can be turned into the City Clerk’s Office August 6 – August 20th at 4p.  
 
The City Clerk is offering a brown bag lunch discussion on August 8 and 16 in the Council Chambers. The 
intent of the open to the public event is to provide an explanation of the process to run for City Council and 
answer questions people may have related to the role of City Council.  

 
Nuisance Abatement of Osage Property 
On July 12, the City Clerk’s Office mailed the final notice of abatement order to the people with known 
rights to the property. Previous notice was sent with a summary of the order on June 29, Confirmation of 
receipt of this order was received for each individual except for one.  
Notice of the order to abate was also posted on the property July 11.  
 
Document Preparation/ Research 
Request for Proposal prepared and placed on the City’s website for Agenda/Packet Management Solutions. 
The due date for the proposals is August 24. In preparation for this Request for Proposal the City Clerk’s 
Office reviewed in detail many different vendor options to help ensure the required solutions offered are 
appropriate for the City.  
Claims ordinance review/modification with attorney.  
Appeal ordinance review/modification with attorney.  
Historic Committee/Commission documents are being added to the City’s website when time will allow.  
 
 

129

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 

City of Bethel  

Election Calendar 
 

 

Regular Election October 2, 2018 

 

Contact Info 
City Clerk’s Office  
300 State Highway 
P.O. Box 1388, Bethel AK 99559 
(907) 543-1384 
cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

JANUARY  1 ABSENTEE BY-MAIL BALLOT APPLICATIONS ARE ACCEPTED  
Forms are available online or at the City Clerk’s Office.  

JULY 31 DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY PACKETS ARE AVAILABLE 
Printable from the City’s website or pick up copies at the City Clerk’s Office 

AUGUST 5 DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY FILING PERIOD OPENS 
Packet submissions shall be made in person or by mail to the City Clerk’s Office 
Monday – Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Fax and email submissions will 
not be accepted.  

AUGUST 20 DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY FILING DEADLINE 4:00 p.m. 
CANDIDATE NAME CHANGE AND WITHDRAW DEADLINE 

AUGUST 22 FILING PERIOD OPENS FOR WRITE IN CANDIDATES 
Packet submission shall be made in person or by mail to the City Clerk’s Office.  

SEPTEMBER 2 DEADLINE TO REGISTER TO VOTE OR UPDATE VOTER INFO 
Forms are available online or at the City Clerk’s Office 

SEPTEMBER 17 ABSENTEE IN-PERSON AND SPECIAL NEEDS VOTING OPENS 
The City Clerk’s Office will be open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through 
Friday 
ABSENTEE BY-MAIL BALLOTS ARE MAILED 

SEPTEMBER 21 DEADLINE TO SUBMIT ABSENTEE BY-MAIL BALLOT APPLICATION 

OCTOBER 1 LAST DAY TO VOTE ABSENTEE IN PERSON/SPECIAL NEEDS 

OCTOBER 2 ELECTION DAY 
Polls are open from 8:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m. 
Precinct 1: LKSD District Office, 1004 Ron Edwards Memorial Drive 
Precinct 2: Cultural Center, 401 Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway 

OCTOBER 4 CANVASS BOARD MEETING 
The Canvass Board will review the precinct records, count absentee ballots, 
questioned ballots and special needs ballots.  

OCTOBER 9 COUNCIL’S CERTIFICATION OF THE ELECTION  

130

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

131



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session
	Clerks Report.pdf
	City of Bethel, Alaska
	City Clerk’s Office





